#### KAIKŌURA WATER ZONE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

on

#### **WEDNESDAY 03 OCTOBER 2018**

TO BE HELD AT THE

DISTRICT COUNCIL CHAMBERS

2<sup>ND</sup> FLOOR

96 WEST END, KAIKŌURA

AT 12:30PM





## KAIKŌURA WATER ZONE COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Wednesday, 3 October 2018

Time: **12.30 – 2.30pm** 

Venue: The District Council Chambers, 2nd Floor, 96 West End, Kaikōura

#### **TIMETABLE & ORDER OF BUSINESS**

	12pm	Lunch		
		Open – Karakia		
1	12.30	Committee check-in & Order of business	Chair – T Howard	
		<ul> <li>Apologies</li> <li>Announced urgent business</li> <li>Confirmation of previous meeting minutes</li> <li>Te Reo practice</li> </ul>		
2	1pm	Opportunity for the public to speak	Chair – T Howard	
3	1.10	CWMS fit for purpose – briefing	M Griffin	
		The workshop session will provide the zone committee with an opportunity to confirm feedback on the CWMS fit for purpose review.		
4	2pm	Committee Updates T Howard / K Heays		
		A series of short updates for the committee following on from previous meetings and briefings.		
5	2.25	General Business		
	2.30pm	Close – Karakia Afternoon Tea Depart for field trip		
6	2.50	Wetland Project – field trip	K Heays	
		An opportunity for the committee to visit a significant wetland site for the committee's work programme priorities. <b>NOTE: bring gumboots/similar footwear.</b>		
	4pm			

### KAIKŌURA WATER ZONE COMMITTEE

	Karakia		
OPENING KARAKIA (one)	E Te Atua Tiakina teora Manaakitia mai te oranui Homai he kakano kiatipu ake ai Tiakina teora E Te Atua Amene	O Lord Guard our wellbeing Bless us Give us a seed so that it may grow Guide and protect us O Lord Amen	
OPENING KARAKIA (two)	E Te Atua Manaakitia mai mātou E kimi nei i tenei taonga mo te hapori o Kaikōura Amene	O Lord Bless us Seeking this treasure For the community of Kaikōura Amen	
CLOSING KARAKIA	Kia a tau kia tatou katoa, te atawhai o to tatou Ariki a Ihu Karaiti Me te aroha o te Atua Me te whiwhinga tahitanga ki te wairua tapu Ake ake ake Amene	Let it be with us all The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ The love of God The fellowship Of the Holy Spirt Forever more Amen	
KAI KARAKIA	E te Atua Whakapainga ēnei kai Hei oranga mō ō mātou tinana Whāngaia hoki ō mātou wairua ki te taro o te ora Ko Ihu Karaiti tō mātou Ariki Ake ake ake, Amene	Lord God Bless this food For the goodness of our bodies Feeding our spiritual needs also with the bread of life Jesus Christ, our Lord Forever and ever Amen	

# MINUTES OF THE KAIKŌURA ZONE WATER COMMITTEE MEETING HELD AT 12.30PM ON WEDNESDAY 5 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 96 WEST END, KAIKŌURA.

**PRESENT:** T Howard (Chair), A Boyd, G Solomon, T Sonal, R Roche, J Murray,

Councillor S Lowndes, T Blunt, Councillor C Harnett.

IN ATTENDANCE: C Armour, J Hill, M Griffin.

**APOLOGIES:** N Dommisse, N McArthur, R Roche (early departure).

Moved by C Harnett, seconded by G Solomon and resolved that

apologies be accepted.

#### KARAKIA

#### 1. URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business.

#### **CONFIRMAITON OF MINUTES 1 AUGUST 2018**

Moved by G Solomon, seconded A Boyd and resolved that the minutes of the Kaikōura Zone Water Committee meeting held on 1 August 2018 be confirmed a true and accurate record.

#### COMMUNITY CHECK IN

The committee went around the table doing a short check in, discussion included:

- Summiting Mt Kilimanjaro.
- Clarence community still want Hamilton Bridge back, and Clarence River/Waiau Toa back in original channel. Interim measures are in place to protect the county road until a final decision is made.
- Community development work involving children and Te Reo Maori.
- Drinking water still an issue for some communities.
- Two new grandfathers.
- Kaikōura Plains Recovery Project are making good progress, good media coverage and last newsletter was really well done. M Griffin questioned if the KPRP information could be stored on the KWZC page on the ECan website, the committee were all in agreement with this.
- Seven dotterel nests in South Bay.
- J Hill confirmed she has resigned and will take up a role with QEII based in Wellington. This will be her last meeting in attendance of the zone committee. The committee thanked her for her contribution over the last 4 years to improving biodiversity in the zone and presented her with a gift in appreciation.
- Te Reo Maori week next week.
- Mangamaunu meaning from G Solomon meaning barracuda bait: TRoNT site for other place names
- Focus on pepeha for next meeting and ECan tutorials for staff

S Lowndes gave an Environment Canterbury Council update:

- All PC5 appeals have now been finalised, this plan change is due to become operative in October.
- ECan will return to all elected councillors next year, 8 from Christchurch city, 2 northern, 2 central and 2 southern. In addition, the current council want to maintain Mana Whenua representation at the table. Currently there is no mechanism under current legislation, so Government are looking at the option of introducing a bill to support this.
- The Fonterra 50 Catchments have a pending update and it is unclear if Kaikoura and Lyell Creek will be included – Murray to follow up with James Caygill.

#### TE REO PRACTICE

Te Reo practice led by G Solomon.

#### 2. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC TO SPEAK

No member of the public attended the meeting.

#### 3. LYELL CREEK/WAIKŌUA RECOVERY PLAN UPDATE

Presentation by C Armour and J Hill outlining the information contained in the agenda papers and recapping the information contained in the two NIWA reports presented at the two previous committee meetings.

C Armour provided an overview and walked the committee through a recap of the plan.

- G Solomon shared her view of the springs that have reappeared, post EQ, and the frustration those on private land that could be protected or potentially kept as wetland. R Roche asked if there was an approach to identifying priority wetland sites. C Armour yes this is part of the plan, but more focused on previous wetland areas.
- T Blunt added his disappointment the KPRG haven't as yet established a pilot wetland project as they haven't found a preferred site.
- G Solomon and T Blunt noted the advantages to farmers of having some wetland exemplar projects to showcase what can be done and achieved.
- S Lowndes asked C Armour if there were any ideal project sites? Yes there are.
- C Harnett asked if the KPRG criteria are too difficult to meet to get a project underway.
- C Armour explained how the AgResearch team were looking for a site that ideally suited their criteria as well, which made the selection process quite demanding initially. Consequently, C Armour walked through the proposed funding arrangements to assist in identifying the proposed sites for funding and project development.
- G Solomon asked how much of the catchment length are we looking at? C Armour confirmed there is 40km of waterway in total and the approach is to target specific sites where there is significant ecological benefit and when water quality improvements can be made.
- G Solomon and T Blunt led a short discussion on possible funding for this work focused on carbon sequestration.

J Hill then explained how Immediate Steps contribution could contribute to these projects, and a tight timeframe to fund and establish projects.

Discussion: T Howard requested to add in an email step, as per the RLG, to give a 3-day turnaround for a decision and an opportunity for committee members to provide feedback. Rather than waiting for the meeting. T Howard noted the aim is not to undermine the outcomes sought, nor staff but provide an opportunity to add to the projects in terms of local knowledge, if the criteria are all met there should be no worry the project would be declined.

S Lowndes clarified the \$50K is half of the immediate steps funding for 2018/19 year? J Hill highlighted the total amount available – \$221,931 – which \$50 is significantly less than half.

T Sonal – email would enable decisions to be made quicker. J Hill advised these projects will have lower ecological scores because they are often creation projects. T Sonal – proposed ZC still approve but by email.

S Lowndes proposed the following recommendation ZC agrees to pre-allocate an initial sum of 50K of IMS according to the criteria set out and subject to a 3-day approval. A failure to respond to the email will be taken as an approval of the application. All in favour.

G Solomon and T Sonal noted frustrations around capacity to resource these projects by ECan staff. T Sonal asked what else can the ZC do to assist?

J Hill noted support from Kate (Biodiversity Officer) at KDC. She noted more resource would help.

M Griffin noted the WWZC had a similar approach with a springhead projects and \$30K of IMS which worked successfully to advance and broaden interest in IMS project around a priority of the ZC – springheads.

J Murray asked if there were any landowners keen currently to look at springhead projects? C Armour confirmed there was but gave an overview of the complexity of setting up these projects and how are number of factors, for a landowner, need to fall into place to get a project up and funded.

J Murray and T Blunt discussed the challenges from a farmer's perspective to support a project on their property.

#### 4. BIODIVERSITY IMMEDIATE STEPS UPDATE

J Hill handed out maps to give the ZC an overview of the Waiau Toa / Clarence Riverbed – weed control strategy. She noted by this time next year we should have maps for the whole catchment, including baseline info and control layers all on Canterbury Maps.

T Blunt asked about the spread of Spanish Heath. This is a concern. J Hill noted this as a value of the survey, as it has highlighted a number of invasive species previously not identified. Mint and Russel Lupin were spotted but should be easy to now target.

J Murray noted the broom control looks promising. T Howard noted how pleased he is to see alder identified as a pest species. He asked if could be targeted through IMS? J Hill confirmed it could.

T Howard noted John Preece would be keen to assist with any wetland focused projects in the Zone.

#### Immediate Steps funding allocation slide

- Project 4 M Griffin clarified the previous recommendation is also application
   4 and the ZC has approved this, which J Hill noted was correct.
- Project 1 Lambs waterway riparian restoration. T Sonal asked how much land area this project covers?
  - J Hill also showed parts of an ecological restoration plan prepared by an ecologist for the Lamb's property, this was funded using MPI Option 2 funding stream.
  - Moved S Lowndes / Second T Sonal. Carried
- Project 2 Braided River Birds Survey
  - T Howard talked of thermal imaging experience in locating nesting sites
  - S Lowndes queried if this aligns strongly with IMS. J Hill noted it does have a real value in ultimately helping the breeding success of birds by getting a good understanding of where they are located.
  - T Sonal asked what the \$ is actually being spent on. J Hill clarified the funding costs – volunteer support costs (accommodation, transport and food for volunteers).
  - T Blunt raised his concerns with a previous survey in 2003.
  - Confirmed the Charwell is in the Hurunui/Waiau Zone
  - Moved T Howard / Second C Harnett, Carried
- Project 3 Birchwood and Okarahia Downs
  - T Sonal clarified what the funding will go to 2/3 of total cost of deer fencing.
  - Moved S Lowndes / Second T Sonal. Carried.

#### 5. COMMITTEE UPDATES

- T Howard provided an update from the CWMS Regional Committee meeting in the agenda.
- The committee discussed rainwater storage options for the community and ensuring this work doesn't get forgotten.
- A draft communication plan was provided in the agenda. G Solomon suggested using Kev's corner to farewell J Hill. T Sonal suggested promoting IMS and wetland protection through one of these channels.
- ZC refresh is about to be advertised, N McArthur and T Sonal will go through the annual committee refresh this year.
- The Compliance Monitoring Annual Report is contained in the agenda papers, G Solomon raised that only 27% of dairy consents were monitored this year.

- T Blunt thanked J Hill for her contribution to the huge progress made between building relationships between farmers and ECan.

There being no further business the meeting closed at 4.01pm.

AGENDA ITEM NO: 3	SUBJECT: CWMS Fit for the Future Project			
REPORT TO: Kaikōura Water Zone Committee DATE OF MEETING: 3 October 2018				
REPORT BY: Murray Griffin, CWMS Facilitator – Kaikōura				

- 1. The Fit for the Future project is looking to develop goals for 2025 and 2030 for the ten target areas in the Canterbury Water Management Strategy (CWMS).
- 2. Zone Committees are an important part of delivering the CWMS. They are heavily involved in both sub-regional plan-making and in championing the actions that will lead to the Strategy and the plans being achieved.
- 3. The Regional Water Management Committee wants Zone Committees to provide input into the draft goals for 2025 and 2030 that have been developed by Task Groups and the Goals Working Group. There is an opportunity for your Zone Committee to reflect particular zonal implementation needs, thoughts about the draft goals and your Zone Implementation Programme (ZIP), and priorities.
- 4. In particular, given the Zone Committee's role, we are interested in any thoughts or advice on
  - Are the draft goals on the mark, over-ambitious, or too easy? What changes should be made to them? Are there any gaps?
  - To what extent are the goals relevant to your Zone do they provide an opportunity for local changes to be made that will make a real difference? Should there be greater recognition of sub-regional differences, and how might that happen? What would need to happen in your Zone to achieve the goals? What are the barriers and what could be done to enable more progress on the CWMS goals and targets?
  - What are the actions and work programmes that will be needed to help achieve the goals. Will your ZIP need to be refreshed?
- 5. The attached paper and its Appendix set out the process for developing the 2025 and 2030 goals, some issues that you might want to consider, and the draft goals developed so far in the process. The draft goals are very much 'work in progress'. Not all of the draft goals are fully developed and will need refinement by stakeholders as the engagement process advances. Many of the draft goals need sharpening. You can help shape the advice that the Regional Water Management Committee will provide to the Canterbury Mayoral Forum on the goals, and what needs to happen to achieve them.
- 6. If you have any views you can express them at your Zone Committee meeting or alternatively in writing to <a href="mailto:cwmstargets@ecan.govt.nz">cwmstargets@ecan.govt.nz</a> by 7 October (although earlier comments would be appreciated).

## Canterbury Water Management Strategy Fit for the Future Project: Engagement Paper, September 2018

#### **Purpose of the Paper**

- 1. The purpose of this paper is to enable those key groups with an interest in the Canterbury Water Management Strategy (CWMS) to engage in setting intermediary goals for 2025 and 2030, and the development of advice on CWMS implementation. This paper and associated engagement meetings are designed to:
  - Get feedback on the draft CWMS 2025 and 2030 goals
  - Get views on what will be needed in terms of implementation and workstreams to achieve the goals
  - Provide any feedback on issues that have been raised by Task Groups and Goals Working Group set up to develop and provide advice on the draft goals.

#### Process of goals development so far

- 2. The Canterbury Mayoral Forum has initiated a project to develop intermediary goals for 2025 and 2030 for the CWMS (between the established goals for 2020 and 2040) to indicate whether the CWMS is being achieved. The project scope also includes development of advice on key barriers and enablers to strategy implementation, with recommendations to address these.
- 3. Environment Canterbury is the project lead for the project, using the following approach agreed by the Mayoral Forum:
  - While the CWMS framework is basically sound, the project needs to identify
    what is required to maintain and build momentum for implementation of the
    strategy and ensure it can be delivered, and develop intermediary goals for
    2025 and 2030 to ensure the CWMS continues to provide meaningful
    guidance for action;
  - The establishment of six Task Groups¹ to focus on the ten target areas of the CWMS;
  - The establishment of a Goals Working Group to provide a forum for coordinated advice to the Regional Committee on a possible set of integrated goals for 2025 and 2030, and what mechanisms are required to support the delivery of the goals;
  - Advice to the Mayoral Forum is coordinated by the Regional Water Management Committee;
  - The project is undertaken collaboratively with territorial authorities, Zone Committees, Ngāi Tahu, community groups and sector groups;
  - Reflecting the collaborative ethos of the CWMS through bringing together a range of interests and perspectives to develop the draft goals and supporting actions.
- 4. Five of the six Task Groups have had the first of two workshops. The Goals Working group has met to consider the outcome of the Task Group meetings. This work is reflected in the attached material.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Members of the Task Groups and Goals Working Group were chosen because of their particular knowledge and water management backgrounds. They will contribute from their own mixed range of perspectives but are not representing particular interests.

#### **Draft Goals**

- 5. Attached are a set of draft goals for 2025 and 2030 for comment. The draft goals are very much 'work in progress' and are a collation of input from the groups to date. For ease of reading;
  - a. A "Theme" column has been added to the table to help describe the objective of each goal.
  - b. All of the existing targets for 2020 and 2040 are underlined.
  - c. New draft targets have been noted with 'New' or 'New Target'.
  - d. The 2025 and 2030 targets have been expressed in a single joined statement.
  - e. Percentage increases, or reductions for the 2025 and 2030 goals are yet to be determined so are denoted with 'X%' for further analysis.
- 6. Not all of the draft goals are fully developed and will need refinement as the engagement process advances.
- 7. We are particularly interested in your feedback on:
  - the draft set of goals for 2025 and 2030 that have been developed so far what changes are needed?;
  - any gaps that you can see in the goals related to the CWMS target areas;
  - implementation and work programmes needed to ensure the goals are met;
  - any barriers to the goals being achieved, and what could be done to enable the achievement of the goals.
- 8. As yet there has been no meeting of the Task Group for the Regional and National Economic Indicators target area. When the Task Group meets one of the matters it will be asked to consider is whether the target areas and goals provide a clear enough picture of the impact of the management of water on the Canterbury regional economy. Any views on this would be welcome, including on how conventional economic indicators (for example, employment, contribution to GDP for agriculture and other sectors) can be supplemented by information on the value of the range of other uses that water can be put to amenity, recreational, cultural and how externalities can be considered in the best way.

#### Particular Issues for goal development

- 9. There are some other issues on which input would be useful, and which are set out in tables below:
  - Some suggested new target areas;
  - Suggested changes to the 2040 targets;
  - The way that common themes across a number of target areas can be addressed;
  - Implementation issues.

#### Suggested new target areas

10. The Task Groups and Goals Working Group have suggested some areas in which there could potentially be new targets and goals. These are summarised in Table A below. There are some areas that are common between target areas (for example, climate change, the recognition of Mātauranga Māori), and where there are overlaps between draft goals and implementation measures (for example, monitoring, emerging contaminants). Views on how these could best be addressed would be appreciated.

#### Table A

Target area	New target/goals		
Drinking water	Groundwater source protection as a 1st order priority		
	Remodelling of Groundwater [Quality and Quantity] to account for impacts of Climate Change		
Recreation and amenity	Mātauranga Māori – to integrate recreation and mahinga kai		
	Climate change and implications for flow regime		
	Meet the recreational water quality guidelines for lake and river sites used for contact recreation.		
Ecosystem health, braided	Need for environmental resilience in face of climate change		
rivers	Measurement systems that cover scientific method and Māori understandings		
Environmental limits	Measuring and reporting against limits		
	New technology and management techniques for limits implementation		
Kaitiakitanga	Monitoring of restoration programmes		
	Tikanga Māori and Mātauranga Māori – the education of values and Te Ao Māori		
	Intergenerational knowledge – avoid loss of cultural knowledge and increase application of that knowledge		
Land area and reliability	Sustainable high value primary production		
New target area – social	Develop a target area and goals for social capital.		
capital - there has been a considerable attitudinal change since the start of the CWMS but further gains must be made.	(Responsibility for achieving the CWMS lies not only with regulatory agencies but also with industry and the community. The engagement of youth in water management is needed. There is no target area for the social capital improvements as the result of the collaborative approach taken in the CWMS)		

#### Suggested changes to 2040 targets

11. Changes were also suggested to six of the 2040 targets. These are set out in Table B below.

#### Table B

Target Area – current target	Proposed new 2040 target and reason for change
Wetlands	100% of wetlands protected and/or in the process of being restored to a self-sustaining system.
Dryland ecosystems	Land use activities do not compromise the ecosystem health of drylands
Kaitiakitanga	Maintained high quality drinking water [for all] marae lwi Management Plans are refreshed and responded to.
Irrigated Land area (and reliability)	Query as to whether the indicative target of 850,000 hectares of irrigated land is realistic.
Irrigated Land area (and reliability)	By 2030, access to reliable water is a foundational element in driving increasingly higher value production options for the primary sector – in a primary sector whose brand recognition is tied to suitable production – especially in the use of water
Energy Security and Efficiency – maintain or increase Canterbury's contribution to New Zealand's security of electricity supply  Generate at least 40-45% of power used by irrigation in Canterbury from irrigation sources	Inappropriate as changes to New Zealand's electricity industry have overtaken the underlying assumptions for this target Inappropriate as changes to New Zealand's electricity industry have overtaken the underlying assumptions for this target

#### Themes across target areas

12. During discussion in the Task Groups a number of themes that crossed different target areas emerged. These themes, and possible ways of addressing them in the CWMS, are set out in Table C below:

#### Table C

Themes across target areas	Discussion		
Cultural expression of the targets and goals – can the goals be expressed in a meaningful way for tangata whenua – do they speak to ki uta ki tai? Do they measure Mauri? Can cultural values also appear for example in FEPs?	Might require a substantial rewrite of the targets and goals or be able to be addressed though some form of overarching statement, and some targeted actions.		
Mahinga kai – concern was expressed in a number of Task Groups that there was insufficient action being taken to	This needs to be addressed in the goals in the kaitiakitanga, recreational and amenity opportunities, and environmental limits target areas.		

Themes across target areas	Discussion		
strengthen the commitment to mahinga kai.	One way of integrating the treatment of mahinga kai is to have its predominant treatment being in the kaitiatikanga target areas, with other target areas referring to it.		
Resilience -related to the above, there was a general theme that the CWMS needed to recognise environmental and economic resilience (especially climate change, flooding, storms, earthquakes and economic diversity respectively)	Climate change, flooding and storms are all to a greater or lesser extent linked to climate change and variability and should be considered as per above.		
Climate change - There is a need for all goals to recognise climate change. This is complex, it will affect a number of goals including recreational and environmental, economic, irrigated land area, energy etc. It may affect limits in plans.	There are two ways of addressing this issue. One is to recommend a separate goal that specifically deals with climate change. Such a goal might be limited to research or process.  Alternatively, each target area could address climate change when goals are set. The challenge would be to do this in time, and integrate cross the different goals.		
Over allocation – there needs to be a firm plan for addressing over-allocation. This is to ensure that recreational, biodiversity and cultural needs are met.	Implementation needs to consider a diversity of tools/approaches		
Flow regimes – must recognise recreational as well as mahinga kai, environmental and cultural use. Need to think about in the context of climate change, and the link between flow regimes, water use efficiency, the availability of water for economic use, and storage.	This can be addressed in the goals for environmental limits, but must consider the outcomes being sought in other target areas.		
<b>Urban</b> – while drinking water is covered, the impacts of urban stormwater and wastewater (including septic tanks) is not sufficiently addressed.	A separate section in the environmental limits target area could be developed.  Targets might be focussed on the values/outcomes expected in urban waterways, rather than projects.		
Achievability of goals – are all goals realistically achievable – for example, the irrigated land goal, some of the ecosystem health and biodiversity goals given environmental lag times?	This will be the subject of further analysis by the Project Team and will be considered by the next round of Task Group meetings and engagement meetings.		
CWMS outcomes – concern/lack of trust/scepticism about whether the implementation of the CWMS so far has sufficiently considered cultural, social and environmental systems.	This can possibly be addressed through a combination of four things:  - Clear goals that are all achievable  - Open and transparent reporting on the goals		

Themes across target areas	Discussion
	Addressing planning shortcomings when monitoring and reporting shows that goals may not be achieved
	A clear implementation pathway that includes roles, responsibilities and funding, and involves buy-in by all arms of government, sector groups, Ngāi Tahu and community groups.

#### Implementation Issues

13. The Task Groups and Goals Working Group have also identified a number of issues that will need to be addressed in work programmes and implementation efforts for the CWMS. These are set out below in Table D.

#### Table D

**Governance** – the importance of strong and balanced governance and management capability; the need for integrated action by all arms of government, sectors, and communities; a desire for Ngāi Tahu to have a larger role in decision-making – how can you act as kaitiaki without control?

**Knowledge** – much has been learnt in the last ten years but much more knowledge is needed – for example, the cumulative nature of multiple pressures on ecosystems; the impacts of climate change.

**Measurement and modelling** – community confidence in the CWMS will be assisted by knowing that the outcomes sought are being achieved. Measurement systems that integrate Māori and western scientific understanding are needed. There should be an independent auditor and reporter on the progress of the CWMS.

Capacity and resourcing – these were raised as a concern by all groups, and in a range of different contexts. It includes resources available to tangata whenua and community groups to engage on water management issues, sector groups and land users who need to adjust to land management within a limits framework and have high debt levels, infrastructure costs, and councils' capacity

**Timing** – two aspects were addressed – the impact of accelerating climate change, the slow pace of in-stream changes due in part to environmental lag times and scientific uncertainty, and the delays in planning responses.

**Accountability and compliance** – there need to be mechanisms for comprehensive reporting against the CWMS goals, and accountability for carrying out implementation steps. Accountability for compliance needs to improve.

**Sub-regional implementation plans –** there is a need for the goals to have a clear implementation pathway – there need to be zone or catchment or sub-catchment implementation plans (which should be integrated with iwi management plans). They should include non-statutory solutions, restoration programmes, funding, responsibilities and timeframes.

**Emerging contaminants** – important for drinking water, kaitiakitanga, ecosystem health and biodiversity. Might be best addressed in the first instance by being a clear work programme to investigate.

**Plan-making** – there are two opposing themes – plan-making is not agile enough, but there is a need for certainty provided by plans that stay in place for a while. It is unclear

how this can be resolved at a regional level other than through the use of best planning practice, good monitoring and reporting, clear implementation plans, utilising a range of tools including a commitment to review plans/consents if outcomes are not being met.

#### **Future Process**

- 14. Feedback from this round of engagement will be provided to the Regional Water Management Committee for its meeting of 9 October, and also to a further round of consideration by the Task Groups and Goals Working Group in October. The outcome of that process will be provided back to key groups with an interest in the Strategy for a further round of engagement from 12 November to 3 December.
- 15. Following that, the Regional Water Management Committee and Goals Working Group will consider the results of the engagement, and report to the Mayoral Forum in April 2019.

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
A1	Drinking Water				
A11	Reduce Nitrates Levels in Groundwater	A demonstrable decrease in nitrate concentrations in shallow groundwater in priority areas is achieved.	Nitrate concentrations remain stable or reduce by X% in priority areas.	Average annual nitrate levels in all groundwater wells* in Canterbury are below 50% of the maximum allowable value for drinking water	
A13	Improve Drinking Water Supplies	There is an increase in the percentage of the population supplied with water that meets the New Zealand Drinking Water Standards for health-based determinants.	Increase in the % of the population supplied with community water supplies that meetings Drinking Water Standards of New Zealand.	Nitrate levels in community drinking water wells are below the maximum allowable values of drinking water	
A15	Increase Source Protection		New: (continuation of 2015 target) Prevent further decline in source water quality by increasing and enforcing protection zones.		
	Understand Emerging Contaminant Risks	Understood any emerging contaminant risks and identified any at risk areas for targeted management and a remedial programme underway.	Understood emerging contaminant risks and target management.	Understood any emerging contaminant risks and identified any at risk areas for targeted management and a remedial programme underway.	
A18	Improve Groundwater Modelling		New: Remodelling of Groundwater to account for impacts of Climate Change	Suggested New: Develop detailed dynamic groundwater modelling to provide data that ensures policy recognises impact of climate change.	
A19			New: Reduce modelled nitrate losses from all intensive farms by X% and: Review of effectiveness of Good Management Practices (GMP) in reducing Catchment Nutrient Loads		
A20	Set and Meet Good Management Practice	Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone on all new irrigated land and 80% of other land in major rural land uses (pasture, major arable and major horticulture crops), and have 100% of rural properties working towards those targets (and of properties within urban boundaries that apply nutrients over significant areas).	Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone on all new irrigated land and other land	Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone on all new irrigated land and 100% of other rural properties (and of properties within urban boundaries that apply nutrients over significant areas).	
A23	Recreation and Amen				
A32	Improve Recreational Opportunities	A positive trend in the availability and/or quality of recreational opportunities in each zone.	A (continuing and measurable) positive trend in the availability and/or quality of recreational opportunities in each zone.	Note: No target set for 2040	
A33	Restore Recreational Opportunities		New: Restored X number of freshwater recreational opportunities in each zone.	Restored at least one major fresh water recreational opportunity in each zone that was not currently available in 2010.	
A34	Understand Emerging Contaminant Risks		New: Improve understanding of emerging threats (e.g. didymo and cyanobacteria)		
A35	Protect Fisheries	No targets set for 2020	Develop programmes in each zone for restoration and protection of fisheries	Restored fishing opportunities in most lowland streams in each water management zone	
A36	Improve Lowland Stream Health		New: Improve health of lowland streams by X%	New: 100% of lowland streams and lakes in Canterbury have improved fishing opportunities.	
	Set and Meet Recreational Flows	Made progress toward achieving environmental flows	Achieved all flows that support recreational flow	Achieved all environmental flows	
A39 A41	Improve Recreational Quality	Of the lake and river sites used for contact recreation, an increase in the percentage that meet recreational water quality guidelines.	requirements.  Meet the recreational water quality guidelines for lake and river sites used for contact recreation.	New: Improve on National Policy Statement for Freshwater Management targets for Canterbury rivers and lakes being swimmable by 2040.	
A42	Reduce Cyanobacteria		New: Develop and implement bathing water standards for Canterbury rivers and streams (focus on Cyanobacteria)		
A43	Emerging Issue	New Targets Theme: Other Emerging contaminant	New: Research threat of emerging contaminants such as microbeads, pharmaceuticals, hormonal treatments, and include mitigation measures in rules.		

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
	Emerging Issue	New Targets Theme: Mātauranga maori	New: Understand the overlap between recreation		
			and mahinga kai and have a kaitiakitanga approach		
A44			to both.		
A45	Emerging Issue	New Targets Theme: Climate Change.	New: Research impact of glacial melt and rainfall		
	Ecocyctom Hoolth one	d Diadiyarcity	pattern change on river flows.		
A53	Ecosystem Health and	a biodiversity	V	Nav. 1000/ of lawland streams also if ad as at	
	Improve Lowland Stream Health		X percentage of lowland streams classified as at least good quality and showing an upward trend (using	least good quality and showing an upward trend.	
	realth		Ecosystem Health and Water Quality Indexes)	reast good quality and showing an apward trend.	
A62			ecosystem rieditir and water Quality indexesy		
	Protect Fisheries	An upward trend in diversity and abundance of native fish	An upward trend in diversity and abundance of	New: 100% of rivers/streams classified as at least	
		populations.	native fish populations.	good quality and showing an upward trend.	
A63				[Note 2]	
	Increase Riparian Planting	Increased the length of waterway with riparian management	Increase area of native riparian margins by X% from		
A64		appropriate to aquatic ecosystem protection by 50% from 2010 figures.	2020 figures over time.		
704	Protect Wetlands	Protected all existing wetlands.	Certain proportion (e.g. 50%) of wetlands physically	(Protected all wetlands.) New wording proposed :	
			protected and/or are in the process of being	100% of wetlands protected and/or in the	
			restored to a self-sustaining system.	process of being restored to a self-sustaining	
A66			- '	system.	
	Protect Wetlands		Land use activities do not compromise the	New: Land use activities do not compromise the	
A67			ecosystem health of wetlands.	ecosystem health of wetlands.	
A07	Lagoons and Hapua Health	A significant protection and restoration programme is in place	Examples of thriving coastal lagoons, and lowland or	Examples of thriving coastal lagoons, and lowland	
	1	on the most ecologically significant river mouth or coastal	spring-fed ecosystems in each water management	or spring-fed ecosystems in each water	
A69		lagoon in each management zone.	zone	management zone.	
	Improve Lowland Stream	Improved condition and water quality in at least 60% of lowland		100% of lowland and spring-fed streams with at	
	Health	streams and 60% of lowland lakes in each zone.	as at least good aquatic health water quality and	least good aquatic ecosystem health or showing	
A70			showing an apwara trena.	an upward trend.	
	Improve Lowland Stream		New Target: Included in all planning frameworks:	New: Land use activities do not compromise the	
	Health		land use activities do not compromise the ecosystem	ecosystem health of lowland streams and lakes.	
			health of lowland streams and lakes (May become an		
A72			action rather than a target)		
7/2	Improve Foothill River Health	All foothill rivers and high country rivers and/or lakes either in	Ecological health of all foothill rivers and high	Maintained upland spring-fed streams and lakes	
		good ecological health or better, or showing upward trend.	country rivers and/or lakes continues to be	in very good aquatic ecosystem health (no	
A73			maintained or improved from 2020 levels.	decline from 2010).	
				80% of other rivers/streams and lakes with very	
A74				good aquatic ecosystem health.	
			New Target: Included in all planning frameworks:	New: Land use activities do not compromise the	
A76		quality indigenous aquatic and dryland ecosystems in intermontane basins and on the plains	land use activities do not compromise the ecosystem	ecosystem nearm of uryidhus	
A/6	Set and Meet Good	Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone on all new	health of dryland Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone on	Achieved nutrient efficiency targets for the zone	
	Management Practice	irrigated land and 80% of other land in major rural uses	all new irrigated land and other land	on all new irrigated land and 100% of other rural	
	_	(pasture, major arable and major horticulture crops) and have		properties (and of properties within urban	
		100% of rural properties working towards those targets (and of		boundaries that apply nutrients over significant	
		properties within urban boundaries that apply nutrients over		areas).	
A80	Set and Meet Good	significant areas).  Made progress towards achieving environmental flow and	Achieved all environmental flavored actabase and land	Achieved all environmental flow and catchment	
A81		catchment load limits.	Achieved all environmental flow and catchment load limits.	load limits.	
701	Understand Emerging		Understood emerging contaminant risks and target	Understood any emerging contaminant risks and	
	Contaminant Risks		management.	identified any at-risk areas for targeted	
A82				management.	
A84	Natural Character of I	Braided Rivers			
		Protected significant habitat for a full range of indigenous	Protected significant habitat for a full range of		
A85	(Flora &Fauna)	braided river flora and fauna.	indigenous braided river flora and fauna.		

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
			Protected and enhanced the habitats in riparian	All indigenous braided river-dependent species	
	(Wetlands, Springs Lagoons)			are showing positive trends in abundance and	
			braided inversi. Trobrailines in place to address	health.	
			threats to improve the naturally uncommon		
A86			ecosystems from endangered to vulnerable.		
	Set and Meet Ecological Flows		Made progress towards achieving environmental	Achieved all environmental flows.	
A87			flows [for Braided Rivers]		
	Increase Community		New: Increased community knowledge, awareness		
400	Knowledge, Awareness		and guardianship of the importance of mauri within		
A88	Increase Braided River Bird		braided river systems.  Increase habitat area usable by all species of braided	Increase habitat area usable by all species of	
A89	Habitats		river indigenous birds by X percent	braided river indigenous birds.	
	Protect Braided River Habitats		All resource management decisions concerning	Canterbury's braided rivers show the dynamic,	
	(Ki uta ki tai)			braided nature typical of such rivers.	
A91			uta ki tai.		
	Emerging Themes				
	Social Capital		#REF!		
	Mātauranga Maori		New: Measurement systems in place that fully integrate Matauranga Māori and scientific		
A94			methodologiesand undeerstandings.		
	<b>Environmental Limits</b>		methodologiesand undeerstandings.		
A96		Review of environmental flows and catchment load limits in	Continue to revise environmental flows and	Review of environmental flows and catchment	
			catchment load limits in response to changing	load limits in response to changing monitoring	
			monitoring information	information, new understanding and	
		and zone committees	· ·	technologies, and if requested by regional and	
				zone committees.	
A104	Set Urban Catchment Loads		New: Establish catchment loads (and flows) for urban		
	Set orban cateminent Louds		contaminants and other rural contaminants.		
A105					
	Set and Meet Environmental	Established and begun to implement a programme to review	Implement a programme to review existing consents	Environmental flow and catchment load limits	
			,	achieved in all waterbodies.	
		achieve catchment load limits	catchment load limits is X% progressed		
A106	Establish Implementation Plans		New: Implementation plans are in place for all		
	for Flows and Limits		catchments to outline how environmental limits		
			flows and catchment load limits will be managed and		
A106.1			achieved		
	Monitor Effectiveness		Increasing use of the real-time monitoring and		
			reporting framework for surface water quality by a		
4407			wide range of the community. (Catchment		
A107			Accounting) Reporting annually on progress toward achieving		
			environmental flow and catchment load limits.		
A108			c c c and catemient load mints.		
A119	Kaitiakitanga				
	Marae Water supply				
		All marae and associated papakāinga have access to high quality		New: Maintained high quality drinking water [for	
	Supply	drinking water	high quality drinking water (repeat of 2020 targets)	all] marae (No target set for 2040 )	
A129	Assure Marae Drinking Water		Now Supply to margo from Community and private		
	Supply		New: Supply to marae from Community and private wells provide healthy drinking water		
	Working together in		wens provide neartify drinking water		
	partnership				
	Integrate kaitiakitanga		, ,	Kaitiakitanga is a normalised and an integrated	
			an integrated practice of water management	<u>practice of water management</u>	
A133					

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
	Planning Regime Reflects Ki uta	Integrated Ki Uta Ki Tai environmental management	Integrated Ki Uta Ki Tai environmental management	New: Iwi Management Plans are refreshed and	
	ki tai	philosophies into zonal and regional management planning	philosophies into zonal and regional management	responded to.	
A134			planning		
	Improve Succession Planning		New: Succession plans and rangatahi forums are in		
			place to enable the next generation to participate		
A135					
		Further co-governance arrangements (developed in partnership			
	Arrangements	La contraction of the contractio	partnership by Ngāi Tahu, the Crown and Canterbury		
		Caratha Carata albuma	local government) for the active management of		
			nominated waterbodies in North and South		
A136	Establish Tangata Tiakiwai		Canterbury		
A137	_		Maintain at least one Ngāi Tahu tangata tiakiwai is		
	Wāhi Taonga and mahinga kai	ZONE (NOTE Z)	appointed in each zone		
A138	wani raonga anu maninga kar				
	Protect Waterways for		New: (from 2040 Target) Protection, in accordance	Protection, in accordance with Ngāi Tahu values	
	Mahinga Kai		with Ngāi Tahu values and practices, of wāhi taonga	and practices, of wāhi taonga and mahinga kai	
			and mahinga kai waterways	<u>waterways</u>	
A139					
	Establish Mātauranga Maori	New: Mātauranga Maori. Probably sits best in "Working	New: An annual mātauranga informed report is		
	Reporting	Together in Partnership"	provided for rūnanga on the health of waterways to		
			inform water management decision-making (by		
			councils and Ngāi Tahu) Tikanga Maori		
A140					
	Protect Waterways for		New: (A or some) Freshwater taonga species (e.g.		
	Mahinga Kai		wai kākahi or wai tuna) are identified and protection		
A141			zones are identified and put in place		
			New: Flows are returned to sustain 50% of Fenton		
A142			reserves and fishing easements		
	Improve Decision Making for		New: Papatipu Rūnanga are decision makers for		
	Allocations		allocations of Ngai Tahu water in each catchment		
A143	la angaga Ong antuniti a fan	In averaged the advised over all assessments and use of weakings had			
	Increase Opportunities for Mahinga Kai		Increased the abundance of, access to and use of		
	iviailiiga Kai		mahinga kai: A region-wide mahinga kai plan is		
			developed and implemented, that informs and		
A144			influences statutory and non-statutory plans)		
	Protect Specific Reaches for	A mahinga kai food gathering standard is confirmed and	Specific reaches of rivers and lakes are prioritised by		
		implemented as a water quality monitoring tool	Papatipu Rūnanga for the protection and use of		
	-		mahinga kai and/or other cultural practices		
A145			5		
	Protect Waterways for		New: Protection Zones are identified for longfin and		
	Mahinga Kai (Specific species)		short fin tuna throughout the region.		
A146					
	Establish Mātauranga Maori	New: Tikanga Maori and Mātauranga Maori and Te Ao Māori	New: Tikanga Maori and Mātauranga Maori - are		
			recognised and integrated into the monitoring		
A147			systems		
	_ ·	New Targets Theme: intergenerational knowledge	New: No loss of intergenerational cultural knowledge		
	Knowledge				
A149	Industrial IA	ANALAS III S Efficient			
		nd Water Use Efficiency			
A162	Infrastructure				

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
	Integrated Infrastructure Approach for Reliability		Integrated Infrastructure system provides X% reliability to X% of irrigated land area while also	No Infrastructure targets set for 2040. New: Infrastructure system provides 95% reliability to	
			ensuring all target area water uses (environmental	100% of irrigated land area while also ensuring all	
			(incl. MAR, drinking water, kaitiakitanga) are met as	target area water uses (environmental (incl. MAR, drinking water, kaitiakitanga) are met as	
			per CWMS priorities.	per CWMS priorities.	
A164					
	Funding Integrated		New: (continuation of 2015 target) Decided on the		
	Infrastructure Solutions		mechanisms for funding infrastructure and the		
A166			ongoing operation of the strategy (Integrated - both irrigation and environmental)		
AIGO	Improve Management and		New: Business cases developed to guide public		
	Governance		investment in public benefits of reliability		
A167			improvements.		
	Build Agreed Integrated Infrastructure	Started construction of regional storage and [improved reliability of supply for at least 50% of irrigated land]	Started construction of regional storage and		
A168	inirastructure	reliability of supply for at least 50% of irrigated family	[improved reliability of supply for at least 50% of		
V100	Undertake Consents		irrigated land] New: (continuation of 2015 target) Complete 80%		
	Reconfiguration		(by 2030) of 'consent configuration' activity (20 year		
A169			anniversary of CWMS)		
		Started construction of infrastructure identified in zonal	Started construction of infrastructure identified in		
A170	Infrastructure	implementation programmes.	zonal implementation programmes (Integrated -		
	Land area and reliability		both irrigation and environmental)		
	-	New: Improved reliability of supply for at least 50% of irrigated	New: Irrigated land area optimised for sustainable	A substantial increase in the reliability of supply	
		land (Part of Above: Build Agreed Integrated Infrastructure)	food production by achieving 95% reliability and	and the area of land irrigated in Canterbury all of	
			water use efficiency. (Mix of Storage, Piping and	which has demonstrated high standards of	
			Scheduling Technologies)	riparian, nutrient and water use management, and has been shown to be consistent with the	
				principles of the strategy. An indicative target is	
				850,000 hectares of irrigated land with at least	
A172				95% reliability	
A172	Develop Storage for Irrigation		New (continuation of 2015 target) A system of	Improved reliability of supply for all irrigated	
	Reliability		regionally distributed rural water infrastructure is	land.	
			designed, timetabled costed and staged - enough		
			storage to provide at least 95% reliability to existing		
A173	Ensure Water Use for High	New: Sustainable high-value primary production and	irrigated areas  New: Sustainable high-value primary production;	By 2030, access to reliable water is a	
	_	increasingly diversified sustainable land use	Metrics give objective information on diversified land	foundational element in driving increasingly	
	·	- /	use using irrigation enabled innovative, high value,	higher value production options for the primary	
				sector – in a primary sector whose brand	
			situated under Economies Targets)	recognition is tied to suitable production – especially in the use of water [from workshop	
				discussion]	
A175				_	
A178	Water use efficiency				
	Establish Benchmarks for		New: (continuation of 2015 target) Established and		
	Water Use		reported against a benchmark of current water use:		
			benchmarks for efficient water use are part of a		
A179			Canterbury/New Zealand sustainable high value production brand.		
12.5			New: Developed and reported on metrics for water		
			use efficiency, incorporating the benefits gained		
A180			from use of the water.		
		80% of water used for irrigation and stockwater is operating according to best practice water use	100% of water used for irrigation and stockwater is	Implemented best practice water use on all irrigation, stockwater and industrial/commercial	
A182	Standards for Water USE	according to best practice water use	operating according to best practice water use	use in Canterbury	
, (±02	l .			,	

Count	Theme	2020	2025 and 2030 Targets	2040	Working Space
A184	Implement Demand Management in Urban Water Use	Reduced water used for community water supply by 10% (measured in litres per person for day) compared to that used in 2010	Drinking water suppliers implementing demand management programmes as part of good infrastructure practices.	Reduced water used for community water supply by 20% (measured in litres per person per day) compared to that used in 2010.	
A185	Increase Value Benefits from Water Use	Increased the benefits gained per unit of water so that the volume of water beneficially used (used in production of crops, electricity, or commercial uses) in each zone as a proportion of the volume of water take is, on average, 5% greater than that achieved in 2010.	Increased the benefits gained per unit of water so that the volume of water beneficially used (used in production of crops, electricity, or commercial uses) in each zone as a proportion of the volume of water take is, on average, 5% greater than that achieved in 2010.	Increased the benefits gained per unit of water so that the volume of water beneficially used (used in production of crops, electricity, or commercial uses) in each zone as a proportion of the volume of water take is, on average, 25% greater than that achieved in 2010.	
A188	Energy Security and E	fficiency			
A196	'	Increased the productivity per unit of electricity – per hectare consumption for irrigation sector and equivalent measures in other sectors.	New Target: Optimised line use charges through new scheduling technology.	Factored efficient use of electricity in all irrigation infrastructure	
A197	Measure Productivity of Energy Use		Measured and reported on productivity per unit of energy. And/or Increased the productivity per unit of energy by X from 2025 (downward trend in energy use per hectare or per unit of economic value).	Reduced the energy used per hectare for irrigation in Canterbury compared to that used in the 2010/11 season	
A199	Measure Energy Use in irrigation		Begin to measure, monitor and manage power used by irrigation in Canterbury from irrigation infrastructure	Generate at least 40-45% of the power used by irrigation in Canterbury from irrigation infrastructure (including multi-use hydro and irrigation systems) within Canterbury and other renewable on-farm sources.	
A201	Integrated Approach to a Dual Use for Water		Electricity distribution companies across Canterbury work engage with major water users to increase understanding and coordination of opportunities for mutual benefit (load management, capacity availability, generation options)	Maintain or increase Canterbury's contribution to New Zealand's security of electricity supply.	

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4	SUBJECT: Committee Updates		
REPORT TO: Kaikōura Water Zone Committee		DATE OF MEETING: 3 October 2018	
REPORT BY: Murray Griffin, CWMS Facilitator – Kaikōura			

#### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of the agenda item is to provide the committee with an overview of updates to be tabled.

#### **COMMITTEE UPDATES**

The following updates will be addressed with the committee:

#### • CWMS Regional Committee

The previous Regional Committee working group workshops were held on Tuesday 11 September. Ted Howard has provided an update on the CWMS Regional meetings he has attended in September, which is provided as **agenda item 4-1**.

The **next Regional Committee Working Group meeting** will be on Tuesday 9 October.

 Link to all Regional Committee meetings and agenda papers –
 https://ecan.govt.nz/data/documentlibrary/?Search=regional+water+management+committee%2C+agenda&documentTypes=-1&pageSize=12&start=1&sortDir=desc

#### • 2018 Zone Committee Refresh

This year's Zone Committee Refresh is currently open for public interest. Expressions of interest to join the Kaikoura Water Zone Committee will be open from 10 September to 7 October.

For more information, go to:

https://www.ecan.govt.nz/your-region/your-environment/water/whats-happening-in-my-water-zone/join-your-local-water-management-zone-committee/

#### Kaikōura Zone Delivery Team – update

- Lyell/Waikōau Catchment Recovery Actions an update on the Lyell/Waikōau recovery plan and projects has been provided by Chloe Armour (Environment Canterbury Land Management Advisor) as agenda item 4-2.
- Lyell/Waikōau Catchment Recovery infographic Zone Manager, Kevin Heays, will table an initial draft of an infographic for this recovery plan at this meeting for the committee's review.
- Zone Delivery Overview Kevin Heays will provide a short update on ECan Zone Delivery and priorities through to the ned of 2018.

## 3 Waters update – Kaikōura District Council Works and Services meeting, 26 August.

The following excerpt is from the Works and Services monthly update provided at this meeting:

#### 3 Waters:

- Peketa works had been completed and the boil water notice lifted. The works included and interim treatment plant, upgrades to the pump and it is now chlorinated.
- Other areas had not changed other than Ocean Ridge's liner had been repaired and testing is being carried out. Three clear tests required before the Medical officer will lift the boil water notice.
- ECCO is still under boil water notice with a meeting arranged for the 25th September with the ECCO committee, Medical Officer and Council to attempt to get it classified as rural, outline a safety plan and make it compliant.
- Suburban and Kincaid remain the same and are included in the Three Year Plan budget.
- All Water Safety Plans are approved except ECCO which is on hold pending discussions.

#### **RECOMMENDATIONS**

• The Zone Committee are asked to receive these updates for their information, and with reference to the committee's 2018 work programme priorities and 5 Year Outcomes.

#### Report by Ted Howard to Kaikoura Zone Committee on Regional meetings for September

On 11<sup>th</sup> Sept I attended 4 regional meetings – A Fit for Future Update, Biodiversity & Ecosystem Health & Braided Rivers, Recreation and Amenity, and Infrastructure.

Dann Olykan presented an update on the **Fit for Future** process. There is a lot in the review – 90 topics, most of which are quite complex in themselves, and interlinked to many of the others.

He noted that economics is being integrated through all targets, which appears dangerous to me, as economics is largely about market values, and we are in a time of rapid exponential expansion of automation.

We did a short session on a few of the targets (most groups managed 6 of the 90 in the hour available). If anyone is interested I have all the files and spreadsheets. A lot of work has gone into it, but it is still clear that many of the targets are just proving Goodheart's Law of complex system ("When a measure becomes a target, it ceases to be a good measure", or alternatively "Any statistically observed regularity tends to collapse once pressure is placed upon it for control purposes.") In that context I love Joi Ito's (Director of MIT's Media Lab) 9 principles for working with complex systems: 1. Disobedience over compliance; 2. Pull over push; 3. Compasses over maps; 4. Emergence over authority; 5. Learning over education; 6. Resilience over strength; 7. Risk over safety; 8. Practice over theory; 9. Systems over Objects – not quite what most people think of when they think planning in an RMA context.

Next was **Biodiversity & Ecosystem Health & Braided Rivers** where our Waiau Toa/ Clarence Black Fronted Tern project was centre stage, though we started with fish habitat and fish barrier projects from further south. Mention was made of other predator control projects, and it was noted that woody weeds were fundamentally altering the character of braided river beds.

Other projects noted were Black Backed Gull control strategy, Robust grasshoppers in the McKenzie, mudfish and predator free islands in the lower Waitaki, and "lean management" in the Waiau and Hurunui rivers. It was noted that new health and safety laws were making it impossible to use jet boats to run some of these projects.

The future was similar, with support for BRAid coordinator, and working closely with DoC.

Weed problems at Te Waihora and Wainono are still significant. Simple solutions don't stay simple for long.

**Recreation and Amenity** was mostly about a draft Freshwater Recreation and Amenity Values in Canterbury report, which most around the table found impenetrable, as it was so abstract that it could mean almost anything in practice (the devil is always in the detail, and there was not detail).

**Regional Infrastructure** covered a lot of detail. It was noted that under economic pressure, higher efficiency rarely reduces water consumption (a paradox only if one's models are too simplistic). Quite a bit on network modelling, and much as I love models, no model is ever the thing it models – they are tools, not substitutes for reality and on the ground expertise.

A lot in the agenda papers.

Wednesday 19<sup>th</sup> saw me back in Christchurch for another "Fit for Future" meeting.

All the comments on the Fit for Future section above applied tot his group too. The more we drilled into the detail, the more exceptions we found to the utility of the targets.

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4-2	SUBJECT: Lyell/Waikōau Catchment Recovery Actions		
REPORT TO: Kaikōura Zone Committee		DATE OF MEETING: 3 October 2018	
REPORT BY: Chloe Armour ECan Zone Delivery – Kaikōura			

#### **PROPOSAL**

An update on the implementation of the Lyell Creek/Waikōau catchment recovery recommendations.

#### **BACKGROUND**

The Lyell Creek/Waikōau catchment recovery recommendations have been put together by NIWA on behalf of the Kaikōura Plains Recovery Project. NIWA have provided two reports to the Kaikōura Plains Recovery project, which have been approved by the Zone Committee:

- 1) The issues facing the Lyell Creek catchment
- 2) The recommended actions for the recovery of the catchment

In the July meeting a briefing was provided on the issues identified by NIWA and ENVIRONMENT Canterbury Kaikōura staff. At the August meeting a briefing was provided on the actions recommended by NIWA for catchment recovery and how these might be funded, which the Zone Committee agreed to in principal.

#### **RECOMMENDATIONS**

That the Zone Committee receives this update on the work towards implementing the Lyell Creek/Waikōau Catchment Recovery Plan recommendations prepared by NIWA in 2018.

#### **PROGRESS**

Four funding streams have been identified to assist with implementing the recommended actions. Details of the criteria of the funding and actions to date are detailed below:

#### Kaikoura Water Zone Committee funding:

#### 1) \$100,000 - On the ground actions

Provided by Environment Canterbury in lieu of a deferred sub-regional planning process in Kaikōura for on the ground actions. Based on the recommendations of the Lyell/Waikōau Catchment Recovery Plan (NIWA 2018) two priorities:

#### - Lower Lyell/Waikōau (\$20,000)

- Add riffles and other in-stream features to improve habitat diversity
- Spray weeds below foot bridge and remove dead vegetation
- Work with Love the Lyell
- Work with West End businesses to assist with upkeep of maintenance

#### Actions:

Concept design (in-stream riffles, improve aesthetics) discussed with supportive river engineering. Next steps – Confirm designs and involve business community in project.

#### - Widening buffers around overland flow paths (\$80,000)

- Overland flow paths or where fence set back needs extending
- Sites where no bank battering is required
- Fund pays for materials and for contractor to do the work, farmer/landowner gives up land

#### Actions:

Work not yet started. Next steps – prioritise landowners with overland flow paths and start discussions.

#### 2) Immediate Steps

Assist the planting element of other projects on a case by case basis, as per the normal Immediate Steps process.

- New spring wetland planting
- Planting rebattered banks

#### Actions:

Kaikōura Water Zone Committee pre-allocate \$50,000 of Immediate Steps funding to Lyell Creek restoration projects at the September 2018 meeting. Project details and funding requirements to be emailed to the WZC with three days to provide feedback, allowing for a much more streamlined process, less delay and more certainty when approaching landowners.

#### 3) Kaikoura Plains Recovery Project - Ministry of Primary Industries

- Will fund demonstration sites of recommended actions (EQ spring protection; buffers around overland flow paths; and bank rebattering)
- \$60,000 available in 2018/19
- Further funding available in 2019/20

#### Actions:

#### **EQ** springs Demonstration site

One landowner has been found who is happy to fence and plant the spring rather than drain, however the spring had totally dried up at the second site visit - this project is now on hold.

#### Overland flow path Demonstration site -

Montagues Creek #1 – this is a large overland flow path area. Landowner is happy to have fenced and planted. Next steps – finalise finances and funding details.

#### 4) \$90,000 – Wetlands – ECan Long Term Plan (Zone team)

- Must be spent in 2018/19 year
- Part of the fund will go towards a wetland flagship project
- Part of the funding will be available to landowners to protect new springs fence and plant

#### Actions:

Zone Team staff are working with a number of landowners with remnant wetlands within the Lyell Creek/Waikōau catchment in order to protect these areas.

- Warrens Creek #1 One already fenced wetland area which we are looking to provide public access to and a viewing platform.
  - Next steps Wetland survey by ecologist to see what (if any) enhancement actions are recommended planting, weed control. Investigations into public access and building viewing platform.
- Warrens Creek #2 a second remnant wetland area on the same property, discussing with landowner best way of protecting this area and logistics of the farming operation with this area protected.
   Next steps Landowner currently on holiday, will continue discussions on return. Grey willow control would be required here.
- Lyell Creek #1 Remnant wetland area discussing with landowner protection project.
   Next steps work out exact area to be fenced off with landowner.

#### Additional assistance:

#### 5) Fonterra 50 Catchments

Nothing confirmed yet

#### **SUMMARY**

Discussions with landowners have started and are being well received. These projects will be consolidated, and more potential sites identified over the coming months. The funding stream each identified project has been allocated to above is subject to change, and there is the potential for projects to be funded by more than one fund.